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Forward

It is not a biassed attempt by the writer to impress the notion of an inferior Russian
Tankforce by showing a majority of photographs depicting destroyed or captured
Soviet AFV’s in this Volume,However, as the informed reader surely can appreciate,
it is very difficult to obtain any number of good photographs of Russian origin. The
few pictures in circulation are mostly propaganda relics sent to the Allied news
services and are by now apparent in numerous publications.

A well-known widely distributed publication is utilizing many stills from Russian
war movies made after World War Il to illustrate historical events.

Unlike the Western Allies and the Germans who had many combat photographers in
the field, the Red Army did not encourage the use of the camera by their troops or
war correspondents. Consequently we have to rely mostly on German PK photos
and it is obvious that the majority of pictures taken are the ones of disabled
or captured vehicles on the Eastern Front after the area was secured, hence the
high quality of the photos throughout this Volume but unfortunately of vehicles in
various stages of disorder.

— Uwe Feist
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Russian light gun tractor STZ Komsomolets. Designed to pull the M1937
45mm anti-tank gun. The vehicle could carry a crew of 8 men, consisting
of driver and gunner in the lightly armored front compartment, plus 3 men
on each side, back to back. The canvas cover over a collapsable frame,
gave the passengers little protection from the elements. Note the engine
crank projecting below the front armor.

(Below left) Abandoned on a Russian country road, this 3/4 front-view of
a STZ reveals the somewhat uncomfortable seating arrangement for the
gun crew, as well as the running gear. The open escape hatches have
rounded off corners compared to the square shaped ones in the previous
photo.

(Below) Weighing about 4 tons, very little is known of this vehicle. The
driver’s vision port is open and the MG is removed indicating that this
vehicle was abandoned by its crew during a Stuka attack. The crew’s
personal belongings are strewn around the STZ, while a German armored
car column rests in the background allowing the infantry to catch up with
them.
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A close-up view of a fully loaded ‘‘Stalinorgel’” (Stalin organ) as the
German soldiers nicknamed this weapon. A full battery consisted of 24
M-8 rockets with a maximum range of 5000 meters.

The T-60 at top speed of 44 Km/hr. Production of the T-60 began in late
1941 and a total of 6000 vehicles left the assembly line.




Front view of the light reconnaissance tank T-60. The turret is offset to
the left in line with the driver's compartment. The 20mm Sh VAK cannon
and the 7.62mm DT machine gun could be fired simultaneously.

The motor compartment, housing the 6 cylinder GAZ-202 gas engine, was
protected by 20mm armor, the turret armor was 15mm all around.
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The SU-76 was powered by two 6 cylinder 85 h.p. air cooled engines,
giving the Tankdestroyer a top speed of 44 Km/hr. (27.5 m.p.h.). The
116 gallons of stored fuel allowed a cruising range of 280 miles on roads
and 185 miles cross country. The driver was positioned in the center of
the vehicle below the gun, in front of the powerplant and fuel tank. The
3 man gun crew found room in the lightly armored gun compartment.
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Like most German self-propelled guns, the fighting compartment of the
SU-76 was lightly armored and open at the top. A canvas tarp could be
pulled over the compartment during resting periods. The SU-76 differed
externally from the older SU-76 M visibly by the extended rear wall,
larger compartment door, exhaust pipe, vision slots and a larger fighting

compartment.
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Sixty-three rounds of ammunition were carried in the vehicle
for the 76.2mm L/41 Type Zis-3 anti-tank gun. The muzzle

velocity was 2172 ft./sec., hurling the 13.5 Ib. shell 12,000
—— -_—

meters.

(Above right) Driving sprocket, return roller and road wheels
of the T-70 (SU-76).

Six rubber-tired road wheels were hung on independent
torsion-bars, running on a 450 mm (17.5) steel track of 70
individual shoes.

11
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The T-70 replaced the lighter T-60 in 1942. Armament consisted of
one 45mm cannon and a 7.62 coaxial MG. Ninty rounds of 45mm and
1000 rounds of ammunition for the MG were carried in the tank. The
clumsy one-piece hatch had to serve for the gunner/commander, the
driver used the one-piece hatch located on top of the front armor.

8225 T-70 reconnaissance tanks left the production lines during
the war. Already obsolete by the time it appeared, the T-70 served
on as a gun tractor and for other towing duties.
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The advancing German troops encountered large numbers of Soviet tanks
in the early weeks of the war in Russia. These tanks were inferior in
armor and firepower and the scenes of the Blitzkrieg in the West appeared
once again. The roads were blocked with armored vehicles, abandoned by
their crews or burned out. A T-26 A and T-26 B light tank left for scrap on
a Russian country road, July 1941.

(Below left) Many AFV’s captured intact were pressed into rear duty by
their captors. This T-26 B with a MG 34 replacing the Russian 7.62mm MG
is employed in support of partisan hunter units. Winter 1941-42.

These 8-9 ton vehicles had a top speed of 30 Km/hr. and a range of 350
Km (215 miles) on roads. The machines in the fore and background are
T-26 B’s, while the tank in the middle is the twin turret MG armed T-26 A.
A total of 4500 T-26’s were built.
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A direct hit and the following internal explosion completely destroyed this
T-26B, only one of the 18,000 Soviet tanks destroyed or captured by the
Germans in the first four months of the campaign.

(Below left) A *‘destructionline’” of BT-7’s, five of the fast tanks were
caught by advancing Panzers on their way to the front. The 13 ton BT-7-1
had a crew of three and a top speed exceeding 70 Km/hr. (45 m.p.h.). For
comparison the new German Standardpanzer ‘‘Leopard’’ reaches a top
speed of 70 Km/hr., however the combat weight is more than three times
that of the BT’s,

Like a turtle on its back, a disabled tank looks just as helpless. However,
this position gives the modelbuilder a rare opportunity to see the floor of
a tank, in this case, a T-28 B. At first glance, the vehicle could be mis-
taken for a Panzer IV!
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A BT-7-1 commander tank with the cylindrical turret of the B'T-5 sporting a
rail type radio antenna and two search lights, A further development from
the lighter and smaller BT-5, construction of the BT-7 began in 1935, The
vehicle passing in the background is a 1 ton prime mover with a 2cm Flak
38 (8d.Kfz. 10/4). You will find more information about German Halftracks
in Squadron/Signal Armor No. 3.

(Below left) The 13mm armor of the gun mantlet of this BT-5 was easily
penetrated by a 3.7cm round of the German 3.7cm PAK 35 or the 3.7cm
KwK of the Panzer III E. The coaxial 7.62mm machine gun is ripped out of
its mounting, killing the gunner and commander.

With a combat weight of 13.8 t and powered by a 450 h.p. 12 cylindef Aero
engine, the BT-7-1 could travel 45 m.p.h. cross country, making this
vehicle the fastest AFV of its time.
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Dug in and used as a pillbox, this BT-7-1 could not stop a determined
enemy. Relatively thinly armored, the advantages of the BT's being its
great mobility, this tank and its crew were sacrificed like many thousands
of others in a frantic attempt by the Soviet High Command to stop the
German offensive in June 1941.

(Below left) The later production model of the series, the BT-7-2, had a
conical turret, a larger fighting compartment and could store 172 rounds of
45mm ammunition (115 rds. in the BT-5) and 3500 rounds for the 2X7.62mm
DT MG's (2900 rds. in the BT-5). The rubber lined road wheels are burned
off this vehicle, which was photographed months after the fighting moved
over this now peaceful countryside of Eastern Poland.

Bogged down and abandoned, this BT-7-2 was left to the
Germans in operating condition. Utilizing the link-plate track
used later successfully in the original T-34 design which
could easily negotiate swampy terrain. The ground pressure
of the 14 ton BT-7-2 was 10.2 Ib./in.2, compared to only
9.1 Ib./in.2 of the 27 ton T-34/76B.




The BT-7 had a Christie type suspension with double rubber tired road
wheels running on a 72 shoed 26cm (10.25 in.) wide steel track. The two
man turret had an armor protection of 15mm all around and a 10mm top
armor, holding the two horn periscopes, airvent and two escape hatches.

Below the turret vision slot and back plate are the pistol ports for self
defense.

With the 45mm L-46 A/TK gun at 50'clock,a BT-7-2 rests abandoned along
the road to be inspected by curious German supply troops. The clean
uncluttered outlines of the BT’s are noticeable if compared with contem-
porary Western tank designs of the 30's. No photographic records are
available to indicate that any of the vast numbers of operational BT-s
captured by the Germans and their Allies were used as secondary tanks,
unlike the many Czech 38 (t), French and British tanks or the Soviet
T-34’s which were issued unchanged to training — or combat units. The
3 man BT light tank series eventually became the most numerous Soviet
tank model, equipping the mechanized brigades of the Red Army up to 1942,
being replaced by the T-34.

17




(Above) Caught by the ever present Luftwaffe Stukas, a mixed lot of
tanks, trucks, ST2-5-2TB tractor and artillery pieces are left scattered
around after being hit minutes ago by the 250 kg (550 Ib.) bombs of the
Ju87's.

(Above left) The left MG turret is completely blown off after a violent
internal explosion, following a direct hit on the right flank, setting the
70 rounds of 76.2mm ammunition on fire. Cumbersome and obsolete, the
28 ton T-28 posted no threat to the Panzer III and IV's which easily
could outmaneuver and outgun this Russian type.

Just a smouldering hunk of steel is all that remains of this T-28 command
tank. Again the left MG turret was blown off following an internal erup-
tion. The 76.2mm 16.5 caliber gun is blocked in full recoil, while the AA
machine gun is pointing aimlessly into a smoke-blackened sky.
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The created gap in the Russian defence is quickly widened by the
infantry and engineer units who have the unpleasant task left to them
by the Luftwaffe to inspect and remove the burned out hulks of hun-

dreds of AFV’s.

Members of a Stabskompanie (staff unit) of Heeresgruppe von
Kleist take time to inspect one of the gigantic 45 ton T-35s
left without fuel on the Rollbahn in Eastern Poland, 1941.
The crew dismantled all five 7.62mm MG’s. Lack of fuel
prevented them from setting their machine on fire.

With a maximum cruising speed of 37 Km/hr. (23 m.p.h.) and powered by a 500 h.p.
gasoline engine, the T-28 had a crew of six, namely the commander, gunner, loader/
turret machine gunner, driver who was seated between the two auxiliary machine
gunners, With the left auxiliary MG turret removed, the open driver’s seat is clearly
visible. Armor protection consisted of 20-30mm (later 40-80mm) all around, with
only 10-15mm on top.

19
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(Above) Barely visible, a red star is painted on the 10mm armor skirting of
this radio equipped T-38. A 30 gallon oil drum was placed in front of the open
engine access panels in a futile attempt to set the vehicle on fire.

(Above left) Painted in dark olive green, this unit appears almost new and
shows no battle damage underlining the reports that none of the T-35’s en-
countered by the Germans were met in combat, but were left abandoned and
without fuel and sometimes only slightly damaged by their own crews.

Armed with a single 76.2mm L/16.5 gun and a 7,62mm MG in the main turret,
one 45mm L/65 A/TK gun in each of the BT-5 turrets positioned in the right
front and rear left position, plus two MG turrets and carrying 96 rds. for the
76.2mm gun, 220 rds. for the two 45mm guns and 10,000 rds. MG ammunition,

the 10 man crewed monster had the firepower compared to two BT-5’s and one
T-28, or one Panzer IV and two Pz. III E respectively!
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A closeup shot of the main turret with the 76.2mm L/16.5 gun and the turret
antenna. Visible on top of the turret are three cylindrical periscopes and the
open round escape hatch lid.

(Below right) The deck of a battle tank, similar to a destroyer with main
turret, secondary turrets plus MG stands. The square opening in the center
foreground is the open escape hatch for the driver of the 45 ton T-35 A, The
mount for the 7.6mm DT MG for anti-aircraft defense is located on the lefthand
side of the commander hatch. Like most tanks, the interior of the T-35 is
painted white to increase the lighting in this vehicle.

(Below) All turrets pointing at 3 o’clock, this machine could be described as
a battleship on land.
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(Left) Pushing his weight through the underbrush, a 43 ton
Klimenti Voroshilov KV-1A is advancing towards a German
armored spearhead of the 11.Panzer-Division. Armed with the
76.2mm gun plus 3 X 7.62mm MG, the KV-1 was more than a
match to the Panzer IIl and IV’'s of the Germans. Powered by
a 12 cylinder 600 h.p. Diesel engine, the KV-1 was relatively
slow and most often outmaneuvered by the more mobile German
Panzers.

The massively cast turret of the KV-1C with 120mm thick
steel protecting the gunner-loader and commander from almost
any projectile short of the 88mm Flak. A vulnerable spot was
the vision slit above the pistol port, often chosen by tank
hunting teams to disable the KV by pushing the barrel of a
MP into the turret and discharging the deadly 9mm rounds into
the turret interior, forcing the crew to open the hatches to
escape the ricocheting bullets, Once the hatches are open,
a well placed handgrenade usually finished the job. It took
one minute for the turret to traverse 360°.

(Left) Trapped in a densely wooded area, this KV-1B is
burning out after a ‘‘Geballte Ladung’’ (6 handgrenades) under
the turret overhang forced the crew to abandon the vehicle.
The KV-1B can easily be identified by the additional armor
plates (35mm) welded to the glacis plate and driver front as
well as the bolted 35mm armor on either turret wall.




(Left) The dead crew members are grim evidence of the preceding
struggle. Once bogged down, the fate of this KV-1-B was sealed. |t
was only a matter of time until these two determined infantrymen
forced the crew to open an escape hatch in order to shoot the Germans
off their tank, a handgrenade or the barrel of a MP was pushed into
the opening, the result can be seen in this picture.

(Below left) With the 7.62mm 30.5 caliber gun pointed at 6 o’clock, this
KV-1A is displaying his tailplate armor of 52mm (upper) and 75mm
(lower) protecting the 12 cylinder Diesel powerplant. The KV-1A first
appeared in 1940 when only 245 units were built.

(Below) The 69cm (27 inch) wide tracks were manganese/chromium
steel stamped with 90 shoes per track.



A KV-1 broke through the frontline and penetrated deep into German held
territory. Hit by several 5cm PAK rounds, one of them blowing off the
driver’s periscope and killing the driver, this 48 ton machine finally came
to a stop in a ditch. While a hastily armed staff officer and dispatch rider
watch on, a SP Gun officer is prying the driver’s hatch open.

Lined up against their tank, surviving crewmen wait, with the preceding
experience still reflecting in their faces to be led away by their captors,
from left to right, the commander/loader, gunner and second driver me-
chanic. Smaller caliber guns firing at the KV-1A showed no effect on the
82mm front turret armorplates.
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The KV-1 was a good tank, well armored, powered and armed. The driver was
seated in the center of the hull, the radio operator/hull gunner to his left, both
were protected by a 75mm homogeneous armor plate, later reinforced by an
additional 35mm armor plate, The turret housed a 76.2mm F 34 gun, a coaxial
7.62mm MG, one MG in the turret rear, a crew of three plus ten rounds of 75mm
and 48 drums of MG ammunition.

(Above right) Three-quarter rearview of the KV-1C as displayed at the Aberdeen
Proving Grounds, Aberdeen, Maryland.

Over 10,000 KV Series tanks were built from 1939 to 1943, eventually leading o
to the I8-3 heavy tank of 1945,

27
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signers and the Soviet Military Command.

The box-like turret weighed 12 tons and housed a 152mm howitzer, a com-
mander, gunner and loader plus 36 rounds and charges. The chassis was
identical to the KV-I..

Escape and loader’s hatch consisted of square 120mm steelplate. Next to the
hatch, the ball mount for the rear MG. The chassis of the early KV-1A were

used unchanged and by adding the box-like turret in place of the KV-1 turret,
the KV-2 was created.

_u—ﬂ__ll__ e osms |
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A one in a hundred shot through the barrel of the 152mm KV-2 Howitzer.

(Above left) A Wehrmacht ‘‘Kradschiitze’’ pauses alongside a battered KV-2.
Hit by numerous projectiles, this ungainly unit was finally stopped by a 88mm
armor piercing shell penetrating the 120mm turret wall.

(Left) Closeup of the penetration into the KV-2 turret by a 88mm APCBC
projectile.




Combat weight of the KV-2 was 52 tons, overall height 325 cm. A crew of six
manned this vehicle, all of them became casualties when the ammunition in the
tank exploded.

The same vehicle photographed four months later. The Front moved
further east and many Russians fraternized with the occupying forces.
Clearly visible is the rifling in the 152mm barrel.
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Many disabled AFV’s were later used as targets for anti-tank gun crews.
The gun cradle and turret of this KV-2 was hit by 20mm Flak, 37mm PAK,
50mm PAK as well as small arms fire.

! (Above right) Appearing in the spring of 1943, the 45 ton KV-85 was armed
with the M-1944 85mm gun which was also utilized in the T-34/85, as well
| as a cast turret similar in design to the former. The KV-85 remained in
service for a little over one year, to be replaced by the IS-1.

With the left track blown off and crowned by a 88 Ib. anti-concrete pro-
jectile, this all dark olive green KV-2 was an early victim of the war as the
i inscription on the turret wall indicates. Knocked out by Flak of the 2nd
| Regiment ‘‘General Goring'' (redesignated to Panzergrenadier Division
l Hermann Goring in 1943) near Dubno, Russia, June 29, 1941.

32
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Displayed on the APG Center in Aberdeen, Maryland, this version of the T-34/76B
series was shipped to the United States after World War |l. Additional storage bins
and extras such as the position of the headlamps and a ‘‘Notek’’ lamp indicate
that this tank had been used by the Germans and captured by the Allies.
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Russian tank crews wearing their typical leather helmets, are posing in front of -their T-34/76.

(Below center) Compared to early T-34/76 A’s and B’s, the later modified version had a turret with two
hatches, one for the commander-gunner, and the loader who had to share a one-piece turret opening in the
earlier models,

(Above & left) The T-34 had an excellent cross-country ability and could negotiate difficult terrain such
as swampy or wintery areas at relatively high speeds due to a favorable ground pressure ratio of 9.1
Ib/per sq. inch.

Ideal terrain for tank units as well as for tank hunters in the air. A spearhead of T-34/76 A’s (with per-
forated steel-tyred wheels) is taking advantage of their high speed and a protective ditch, to bypass a
German Panzer unit far ahead of the main body.

34




Inspite of their superiority in armor, armament and speed,
T-34’s were destroyed in great numbers by Panzers, Sturm-
geschutze, PAK and individual infantrymen, as well as by
0 aircraft mainly Ju87’s and Henschel He 129’s. In this picture,
e members of a Stu.G III, Sturmgeschutzabteilung 177 inspect a
T-34/76B which was knocked out by their assault gun.

An internal eruption completely dismantled this T-34/76B
blowing off the turret roof and exposing the 65mm turret armor,
The curved gun mantlet had an armor thickness of 65mm, the
turret front was also 65mm.

L
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Later versions of the T-34 had an improved track plate compared to the smooth
plates shown in the above picture which are of the original Christie pattern.
The rectangular service hatch on the rear plate of the earlier versions was
replaced by a round hatch allowing access to the transmission.

(Above left) The T-34 was based on a Christie-type suspension. Five rubber
or steel tired wheels were mounted on trailing suspension arms with individual
springing tracks consisting of 76 cast manganese steel links, 19 inches wide.

Rear view of the Aberdeen T-34/76B shows to advantage the well sloped
outlines of this classic vehicle. The relatively small turret with the rear pistol
port was cast side and rear in one piece: in 65mm (sides) and 47mm (rear)
steel. The final drive single straight-spur reduction gears are housed in the
armored mountings protruding under the lower tail.




""Main Street of Muddygrad,”’ spring 1943 in some Russian village, a T-34/76
doubles as a way marker for a German regimental headquarters. The rear
driving sprocket appears to have been removed for spare parts rather than
forced off, since a shell or mine blast would have affected the surrounding
parts of the rearend.

for the reduction gears and armor cover for the exhaust pipes

Closeup details of the smooth track plates, spare tracks, armored housing

s




(Left) Side episcopes, pistol port and bolted gun mantlet are some of the
external details which make the early T-34 versions easily identifiable.
The holders on the side armor plate were added on by the Germans while
refitting the captured tank to their specifications.

(Right) The suspension system of the T-34 as well as the BT'’s evolved
from the American Christie design.

(Above right) Comprising of five solid, double-disc type wheels, with th
track guide horns running between the double wheels.

(Below right) Rear drive sprocket wheel and wiper plate of the T-34 run:
ning gear,

(Right) Front idler wheels and rubber lined road wheels.

(Left) One of the specifications is the ‘‘Notek’’ lamp, a device for driving
at night in a column. Every German vehicle sported a ‘‘Notek’’ lamp on
the front.

38
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View from the driver’s seat into the fighting compartment. Nine rounds of
76.2mm gun ammunition are stored in racks on the walls. 68 rounds could be
stacked in bins under the turret floor. An additional 2000-3000 rounds of MG
ammunition in magazines holding 63 rounds could be carried.

Many captured T-34’s were pressed into service with Panzerunits to make up
for ever mounting losses. Here the 12 cylinder Diesel engine with one head
removed is overhauled by field maintenance personnel, One of the eight tanks
holding a total of 135 imp. gal. diesel fuel is visible on the left of the engine
compartment. Additional fuel was carried in four external tanks.
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Combat Weleht s oo oo o iy i i e Ca s o iy 32 Tons

AOEOW s iy Five men (commander, gunner, loader, hull machine gunner/
wireless operator, driver).

BB cucomscwommareiomssnsasmesm o R O R A SR S S 26.5 ft. (overall)
HBTEEL oo vommmmsms spsnmnsn i e e e o R i Y A 0 oA T 8.11 ft
WAL . i o i 30 e ni At 0k U ETR ST RIS T S S SR E s 9.10 ft
ACMAMBNET: w oo sevivignmimesivn vl 1 85mm gun, Model M-1944, 54.6 calibers
ovae M 1565w 2 X 7.62mm MG

Ammunitions: consmpnsnns swnuey 56 rounds 85mm AP and HE, 2745 MG rounds
MU opp roX 45'1-'-@"; plus 20 handgrenades

AFMOEY - s s st Hull: Bow 45mm, Glacis plate 45mm, sides 45mm

lower sides 47mm, rear 45mm, deck 18-22mm
Turret: Gun mantlet 55mm, front 75mm, sides 95mm,
rear 75mm, roof 20mm

BB L oe i i s pssn s 1 X 12 cylinder V, 500 h.p. four stroke water cooled
Diesel engine.

Performance:
Max. Speed: :.coan vt 31 m.p.h. road, 24 m.p.h. cross-country
Radiusi. coos cwaans 185 miles (main tank), 220 miles (auxiliary tank)
Fuel Capacitys. . cvovvwacnin son o i on sSbits SIRISISITSRIEL . | 170 gallons Diesel
60 gallons external tanks
Ground PreSSUIE:. . o vnunenesenonesensoossnoioeRiSSRSRl, ., . ... 11.8 Ib/in2

Production:................. Approximately 50,000 T-34/76 & T-34/85 till 1945

1he T-34 /b5




Infantry mounted on T-34/85’s escorted by motorcycle
riders in German ‘‘Kradschutzen’’ style, with sidecar
and mounted 1.MG.

With the engine compartment forcibly opened, the transmission
is partly visible in front of the V-12 cylinder 500 h.p. diesel
engine,
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Except for the turret and fighting compartment, there were no major changes
on the basic chassis of the T-34/76. The fuel lines can be seen leading
from the external tanks into the center of the engine compartment. The
massive turret had the handrails like the T-34/76 but no pistol port on the
rear plate. However, the vision slots and pistol ports were retained on either
side of the turret walls. The two domed-shaped turret ventilators are located
behind the commander cupola.

(Above left) Upgunned with a 85mm Model 1944 Z|S-S-53 cannon, the T-34/85
weighed 32 tons (T-34/76 27 t.) had a crew of five men and a maxium speed
of 32 m.p.h. The vehicle on display in Aberdeen is probably a version en-
countered by U.S. forces in Korea and brought to the States for evaluation.
The turret wall was previously cut open and crudely covered up again.

Four external Diesel fuel tanks holding approximately 15 imp. gallons each
are strapped on the rear walls of the vehicle, a unique feature characteristic
of Russian tanks only. The T-34/85 entered into service in December 1943,
eventually replacing the T-34/76 now outgunned by the Pz, IV H, ‘‘Panther”’
and Tiger I.
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The T-34/85 turret was cast and welded with the turret front and mantlet having up to
100mm of armor thickness. Positioned to the left of the 85mm gun is the gunner’s tele-
scopic TMFD sight, mounted coaxially with the main gun is the second MG. The driver's
hatch is open revealing the two periscopic sights under the hatch.

Driver and MG gunners position behind the 47mm glacis plate. The machine gun, a 7.62mm
Degtyarev had a rate of fire of 450-500 r.p.m. and could also be fired by the driver. 2745
rounds of MG ammunition were stored in magazines holding 45 rounds each.
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TANK DESTROYER

Appearing in late 1943, the SU-85 was the Russian counter-
part to the German Sturmgeschutz (Squadron/Signal Armor
No. 1). Armed with the 85mm gun and carrying 48 rounds of
ammunition, the SU-85 proved to be an effective support
weapon if employed in conjunction with the T-34’s.




If employed as individual units, they invariably fell prey to sniping German
PAK, 88's or Sturmgeschutz. A ‘‘Richtkanonier’’ (gunner) Feldwebel (technical
sergeant) is inspecting the effect of the 88mm APC shell which penetrated the
45mm front armor and spare tracks of a SU-85 Tankdestroyer, Russia, Fall
1944,

(Below left) Weighing 30 tons, incorporating an anti-tank gun of limited traverse
in a heavily armored fighting compartment, the SU-85 housed a crew of four,
namely commander, gunner, loader and driver. Members of a ‘“Nashorn’’ self-
propelled anti-tank gun (Squadron/Signal Armor No. 5) are inspecting the first
SU-85 they encountered.

Two SU-85 Tankdestroyers lie disabled and abandoned on the shell crater
dotted countryside of Eastern Poland, 1945.
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The frontal hit by an 88mm anti-tank gun ignited the 48 rounds of
gun ammunition causing the vehicle burn out, leaving the rubber
of the road wheels in heaps of white dust. Note the opening of the
pistol port on the side armor wall with the steel plug hanging on
a chain touching the tool box.

Replacing the SU-85 in early 1945, the SU-100 main feature was
the 100mm anti-tank gun. The increased front armor of 75mm and
110mm on the gun mantlet increased the combat weight of this
Tankdestroyer to 32 tons.
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A shell struck the barrel of this Howitzer and entered the fighting compartment
through the recoil system and exploded inside the vehicle. The ensuing explo-
sion bent the 20mm roof upwards exposing the cone shaped episcope, vision
ports, escape hatch and ventilator.

(Above right) The predecessor of the SU Tankdestroyer series was the SU-122
mounting a M-1938 122mm howitzer. Easily distinguishable by its ungainly
armor housing for the recoil system and a very short barrel, the SU-122 was
replaced by the more versitile SU-85 in late 1943.

Superseding the KV Heavy Tank Series in 1943, the 55 ton JS-1 was armed with
an 85mm gun plus 3 X 7.62mm MG. Powered by a 600 h.p. Diesel engine, this
heavy tank had a crew of five and could travel at a top speed of 37 Km/hr. on
roads. These J8-1 heavy tanks were destroyed by ‘‘Panthers’’ of the Division
‘‘Grossdeutschland’’ during a German counter-attack near Konigsberg, East
Prussia, February 17, 1945. Despite of heavy tank losses throughout the war
and up to the last skirmishes between Panzers and Tahk (Russian tanks),
Russia emerged at the end of World War Il with the biggest armor force in the
world, with over 25,000 tanks at her disposal.
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